ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 6, 2014
9:00 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair

Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senat or John Coghi | |

Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Bert Stedman

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Commi ssi oner, Departnment of Adm nistration
Curtis Thayer

Al aska State Conmi ssion for Human Ri ghts
M chel e Chri stiansen

Al aska Police Standards Counci l
Ri chard Burton

Vi ol ent Crines Conpensati on Board
Nora Barl ow

Al aska State Human Ri ghts Comm ssion
| mmanuel Lew s

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 23

Proposing an anendnent to the Constitution of the State of
Alaska relating to contracting state debt for postsecondary
student | oans.

- MOVED SJR 23 OQUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 18

Requesting the United States Congress to call a convention of
the states to propose anendnents to the Constitution of the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 6, 2014



United States that inpose fiscal restraints on the federal
government, limt the power and jurisdiction of the federal
government, and |imt the terns of office of federal governnent
officials; and urging the legislatures of the other 49 states to
request the United States Congress to call a convention of the
states.

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE BILL NO 149

"An Act relating to public hearings on initiatives and referenda
scheduled to appear on the ballot; and providing for an
effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SJR 23

SHORT TITLE. CONST. AM STUDENT LOAN DEBT
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) FAI RCLOUGH

02/ 14/ 14 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 14/ 14 (S) STA, EDC

03/ 06/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SJR 18

SHORT TITLE: FEDERAL CONSTI TUTI ONAL CONVENTI ON
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DYSON

02/ 05/ 14 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 05/ 14 (S) STA

02/ 27/ 14 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 27/ 14 (S Heard & Held

02/ 27/ 14 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 06/ 14 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR ANNA FAI RCLOUGH

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SJR 23.

DI ANE BARRANS, Executive Director

Al aska Student Loan Corporation
Juneau, Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 6, 2014



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded departnental information on SIJR 23.

M KE COONS, representing hinself
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposes SJR 23.

CURTI S THAYER, Commi ssi oner - Desi gnee

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addr essed guesti ons regar di ng hi s
appoi nt nent as Comm ssi oner for t he Depar t ment of
Admi ni strati on.

| MVANUEL LEW S, Comm ssi oner - Desi gnee

Al aska State Conmi ssion for Human Ri ghts

O fice of the Governor

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addr essed guesti ons regar di ng hi s
appoi ntment as Conm ssioner for the Al aska State Comm ssion for
Human Ri ghts.

M CHELE CHRI STI ANSEN, Conmi ssi oner - Desi gnee

Al aska State Human Ri ghts Conm ssion

O fice of the Governor

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addr essed guesti ons regar di ng her
appoi ntment as Conmi ssioner for the Alaska State Comm ssion for
Human Ri ghts.

NCRA BARLOW Board Menber - Desi gnee

Vi ol ent Crines Conpensation Board

Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addr essed guestions regar di ng her
appointnment to the Violent Crines Conpensati on Board.

Rl CHARD BURTON, Council Menber - Desi gnee

Al aska Pol i ce Standards Counci

Departnent of Public Safety

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addr essed guesti ons regar di ng hi s
appoi ntnent to the Al aska Police Standards Council.

TYLER BELK, Staff
Senat or Dyson

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 6, 2014



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview for SJR 18.

ROBERT KELLY, Staff Counci l
Convention of States Project
Citizens for Self-Governance
Purcellville, Virginia

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SJR 18.

ZABRI NA BYFUGLI EN, St udent
Tri-Valley Hi gh School

Heal y, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SJR 18.

MADI SON OVEN, St udent

Tri-Valley Hi gh School

Heal y, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SJR 18

| SABELLA SAXE, Student

Tri-Valley H gh School

Heal y, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SJR 18.

NI COLE MCVASTER, St udent

Tri-Vall ey H gh School

Heal y, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SJR 18.

DAVI D El CHLER, State Director
Convention of States Project

North Pol e, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SJR 18.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9: 00: 42 AM

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Committee neeting to order at 9:00 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Wel echowski, G essel, and Chair Dyson.

CHAI R DYSON revi ewed the commttee cal endar.

SJR 23- CONST. AM STUDENT LOAN DEBT

9:01: 34 AM
CHAI R DYSON wel conmed Senator Fairclough to introduce SJR 23.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 6, 2014



9:01: 42 AM

SENATOR ANNA FAIRCLOUGH, Alaska State Legislature, Juneau,
Al aska, stated that SJR 23 anends the Alaska Constitution which
is a very serious matter. She explained that SIJR 23 sinply
allows the Legislature to authorize a l|loan for post-secondary
students. She added that SJR 23 fits into a constitutional
amendnent and allows for a post-secondary education bond that
would have to conme to the Legislature for approval. She said
ultimately the resolution would have to go to voters and ask if
they agreed wth the Legislature. She pointed out that current
state law under the Alaska Constitution allows for capital
i mprovenent i ndebtedness and housing |oans for veterans. She
detailed that SJR 23 would expand the legislative authority to
cover a debt for one nore entity.

9:03: 23 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL joi ned the conmittee neeting.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked why SJR 23 is needed.

SENATOR FAI RCLOUGH answered that students across the nation are
experiencing a high debt load, sonething that the country's
Foundi ng Fathers probably never considered. Debt was sonething
different many years ago than it is today. She said the state's
students are borrowing at a rmuch higher rate than they can
achieve or acquire. The federal national |oan program was at 7
percent and has been reduced to 3.86 percent. She said the hope
is for student to go and try to access federal loans first. She
remar ked that currently because of the structure of the Al aska's
| oan system the state is financing 2014 |oan debt for students
at 7.30 percent via the Al aska Supplenmental Education Loan and
Fam |y Education Loan.

She said SIJR 23's purpose is to first, extend student |oans at a
lower interest rate by using the full faith and credit in
Al aska's AAA credit rating. Second, over tine the Legislature
could assist students by refinancing their higher interest
| oans.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI st at ed t hat he supports Senat or
Fairclough's efforts. He asserted that the Legislature needs to
drive down outrageously high |loan costs for student. He pointed
that the priorities are wong when banks can get |oans for |ess
than 1 percent and Al aska is charging students 7 percent.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 6, 2014



He asked how nuch the interest rates can be driven down. He
inquired if lowering interest rates was a better approach than
funding | oans through the State's General Fund.

SENATOR FAI RCLOUGH responded that the lowest debt to students
woul d occur through the State's CGeneral Fund. She said using the
State's Ceneral Fund is a challenge due to volatile oil prices
and tight budgetary times. She stated that SIJR 23 would offer
loans that would be a percent or percent-plus below what is
currently offered.

9: 06: 23 AM

DI ANE  BARRANS, Executive Oficer, Al aska  Student Loan
Cor poration (ASLC), Juneau, Al aska, noted that she was also the
Executive Director of the Al aska Comm ssion on Postsecondary
Educati on. She said Senator Fairclough has done an excellent job
of explaining the objective and the reasons behind SIR 23. She
noted that Senator Fairclough is correct that, depending what is
occurring in the mrket, general obligation bonds can be
accessed with the Alaska's AAA credit behind it to achieve at
| east a percentage point reduction bel ow what coul d ot herw se be
achieved. She added that another benefit would be the rating
agencies and investors looking at Alaska's credit, rather than
scrutinizing education |oans, revenue wll be provided to pay
down bonds and the credit criteria may be w dened so that nore
Al aska students can qualify.

9:08: 25 AM

SENATOR FAI RCLOUGH pointed out that around the tine of the 2008
financial crisis, the federal governnent actually increased the
credit scores required to access |oans. She noted that
previ ously, students were considered a good risk if they did not
have credit. Currently the new definition requires a student to
have a mninmum credit score and students are not qualifying. She
provi ded an exanple of having to co-sign for her son in order to
obtain a student |oan for college.

9:10: 05 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said college student debt has becone a
national crisis. He pointed out that there is a trillion dollars
of outstanding student |oan debt. He asked how nmuch the student
loan interest rates will be reduced and how nmuch the state wl|
pay in addition to what the students wll be charged. He

inquired if SIJR 23 is the best way to get the interest rates
down for students.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 6, 2014



M5. BARRANS replied that a significant change to interest rates
can be nade. She pointed out that market-based rates have been
at historical lows over the past several years and her intent
was not to over prom se what using the state's AAA rating wll
allow for the |owest possible cost of funds. She continued to
explain as foll ows:

If we were in the market today with AAA debt, | think
we would be in the 4.5 to 4.6 percent range. Conpare
toif we were in nmarket today with student |oan backed
bonds, we would be at |east a percentage and a half
hi gher than that. So that's kind of the differential
that you can achieve, but again it would allow us as
well to make the loans nore wdely available to
students. Right now, as Sen Fairclough points out in
her sponsor statenment, we deny over 40 percent of
applicants who cone to us now. W are failing to
really deliver the kind of program to state residents
that we should both wth respect to price and
availability. To your second nore broad question
regarding is this the best approach, | would suggest
that it is, not only will we not be |ooking at a year-
to-year situation where if we were to go to a genera
fund supported program where we have to rely on what
other priorities the state is dealing with financially
and we can't make a long term conmitnent to borrowers,
but we are using the state's credit very efficiently
W thout associating a financial obligation upon the
state. The | oans thenselves can be structured to pay
down the bonds, avoid any potential burden on the
state general fund, but still deliver a product that
woul d rival any other non-federal loan in the country.
W would hopefully be second to none wunder this
structure.

9:13:33 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if SJR 23 is essentially revenue
neutral by passing through costs with admnistrative fees. He
inquired if the state is losing noney or will SJR 23 allow the
state to make noney. He addressed delinquency rates and queried
if the state anticipates a problem

M5. BARRANS answered that cost is rather revenue-neutral. She
expl ai ned that the business nodel has been to keep costs to the
borrower as low as possible while remaining in a position to
denonstrate good faith in repaying bond holders. She noted that
hundreds of mllions of dollars of bonds have been issued over

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 6, 2014



the years without ever having to statutorily ask the Legislature
for funds to cover bond shortfalls. She pointed out that
borrowers have been provided with benefits in the form of
credits that are applied to | oans. She explained that a student
who attends school in Alaska and is making automated paynents
can receive a 0.75 percent credit. She said delingquency rates
are quite low and average in the 5 to 8 percent range. She noted
that delinquency rates increased during the recessionary period,
but rates have declined during the past two years. She set forth
that ASLC is in a very good situation to |look at supporting the
next generation of student |oan financing.

CHAI R DYSON i nvited public testinony.

9:17: 07 AM

M KE COONS, representing hinself, Palnmer, Alaska, said he
opposed SIJR 23 and noted the nation's propensity for debt rather
than savings. He stated that Iowered interest rates wll
exasperate student debt.

9:20: 08 AM

CHAI R DYSON announced that public testinony is closed. He asked
to confirmthat if SIR 23 gets on the ballot and is approved by
voters, SJR would have to cone back to the Legislature for
aut hori zation by specific |aw

SENATOR FAIRCLOUGH concurred with M. Coons' concern wth
student debt and noted that she supported savings. She stated
that voting for SJR 23 supports |loans for students who do not
have savings or parents that can help out. She pointed out that
ASLC already has the capacity to borrow, so there is nothing new
that would have to happen. She agreed with previous SJR 23
testinmony that a student can carry less debt if they graduate on
tinme. She added that the state should help students understand
the cost of education and the debt that will have to be carried
in the future.

9:22:21 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL noted that the student |oan program is a tool
that allows the state to put together a way to nake the best use
of its nmoney. He added that the concept really cones down to the
cost of noney.

SENATOR G ESSEL agreed with M. Coons and Senator Fairclough
that debt is not good. She stated that she supports SIJR 23, but
noted that the resolution does not get at the problem of why
secondary-education i s beconm ng nore expensive.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 6, 2014



CHAI R DYSON announced that the Chair will entertain a notion.

9:23: 36 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report SIJR 23 from conmttee, |abeled
28-LS1394\U with individual recommendations and attached fisca
not e(s).

9:23:50 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that seeing no objection, SJR 23 passed
out of the Senate State Affairs Standing Commttee.

9:23: 57 AM
CHAI R DYSON decl ared that the commttee will stand at ease.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS
Commi ssi oner, Departnment of Adm nistration
Al aska Police Standards Counci
Al aska State Conm ssion for Hunman Ri ghts
Violent Crines Conpensati on Board

9:24:51 AM
CHAIR DYSON set forth that the commttee wll take up the
appoi nt nent of Comm ssi oner for t he Depar t ment of

Adm ni stration, Curtis Thayer.

9:25: 08 AM

CURTI S THAYER, Comm ssi oner - Desi gnee, Depart ment of
Adm ni stration, Juneau, Al aska, revealed that he was born and
raised in Alaska, graduated from Bartlett H gh School in

Anchorage, and attended college at the University of Al aska-
Fai r banks.

He noted that he had previously worked for the Federal Bureau of
| nvestigation as a paralegal, Congressman Don Young in
Washington D.C. for seven years, Senator Lisa Mirkowski, and
Senator Ted Stevens. He continued that he returned to Al aska and
entered into the private sector with BP, ConocoPhillips, and
ExxonMobil. He said he also worked for Enstar Natural Gas
Conmpany as the Director of Corporate and External Affairs.

He reveal ed that the Governor gave him a very unique opportunity
and asked if he would join his admnistration in 2009 as the
Deputy  Conmm ssi oner of Comer ce, Community and Economc
Devel opnent. He noted that is role as Deputy Conm ssioner
enconpassed the direct oversight of Alaska's Banking and

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 6, 2014



Securities Di vi si on, Di vi si on of | nsur ance, Econom ¢
Devel opnent, Corporations-Business and Professional Licensing,
and Community & Regional Affairs. He added that he served on the
boards for the Alaska Housing Finance Corporation, Al aska
Gasline Devel opnent Cor por at i on, and the Alaska Seafood
Marketing Institute. He noted that he currently serves as
Chai rman for the Al aska Board of Marine Pilots.

He said the Governor asked him to take an opportunity that
presented itself in the Departnment of Administration (DOA) to
serve as Deputy Commssioner. He revealed that his DOA
responsibilities included oversight for: the Division of
Adm ni strative Services, Division of GCeneral Services, Division
of Personnel, Labor Relations, and Division of Mtor Vehicles.
He said the Governor asked in Decenber if he would consider
serving as the DOA Conm ssi oner when Becky Hul tberg resigned.

9:28:13 AM

He said there are a lot of challenges ahead at DOA. He decl ared
that the previous conm ssioner left DOA in better condition and
noted that he is hopeful to do the sanme. He explained that DOA
is a customer service oriented departnment and acts as the
state's cost center. He remarked that state agencies that do not
fit in other departnents are placed in DOA

MR. THAYER revealed that DOA has anything from Personnel and
Labor Relations to the Public Defender Agency, Ofice of Public
Advocacy, Retirenent and Benefits, D vision of Mdtor Vehicles,
and Ceneral Services. He sunmarized that DOA is all custoner
servi ce, whet her custoners are enpl oyees, retirees, or
constituencies.

He informed the commttee that he |ooks at three things when
hiring sonebody: good enployees, trustworthy enployees, and
| oyal enployees. He asserted that he asks nothing of his
enpl oyees that he woul d not ask of hinself to do.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noted that his office has been trying to
get a side-by-side on the retiree healthcare changes. He asked
if he could receive an updated copy.

MR. THAYER responded that DOA has been working on the side-by-
side and noted that the delay was caused when DOA noved to
Aet na.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted receiving e-mails from Public
Enpl oyees Retirement System (PERS) and Teachers' Retirenent

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- March 6, 2014



System (TRS) retirees who asked if their pensions and benefits
wer e safe.

9:31:17 AM

MR. THAYER answered that he did not believe the benefits of
retirees can be dimnished, whether that be their pension or
heal thcare. He addressed the unfunded liability that the state
carries which is currently a little shy of $12 billion. He said

the wunfunded liability is sonmething that everyone struggles
with, including the Legislature and the Governor. He pointed out
that the Governor has a proposal to nove $3 billion into the

PERS and TRS liability to ultimtely cap the state's obligation
at $500 mllion. He explained that DOA is working with the
Legi slature on addressing the PERS and TRS issue. He said he
personal ly would rather see the state take a "bite at the apple”
now to start to resolve the unfunded liability problem than
"kick the can down the road."

9:32:13 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI expressed his appreciation in the efforts
to pay down the PERS and TRS debt. He pointed out recruitnent
and retention, noting that many l|egislators believe that there
shoul d be a defined benefit system for enployees. He stated that
there was an effort in the House to return the defined benefits
for public safety officers. He asked for M. Thayer's thoughts
regarding recruitnment and retention and whether or not the state
is doing what is needed to keep people working for the state.

MR. THAYER replied that DOA has a very robust retention in
payrol |l and does not see an issue with retention. He noted that
Alaska is the only state in the wunion that did not freeze
salaries after 2008 and added that the state has increased
salaries. He voiced concern for a pending bill that defines
benefits for police and firefighters that could easily be
expanded and put the state back into the current situation with
PERS and TRS.

9:35: 14 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asserted that there is a wn-wn
opportunity if the state setup a Taft-Hartley like plan for its
enpl oyees where they can nmake a contribution and then be off-
t he-hook. He pointed out that enployees' concerns relate to not
knowi ng how long they are going to live and their investnents
tend to be conservative. He said pooling investors allows for
greater returns due to the use of professional investors. He
asserted that a system could be devel oped where the state nakes
a contribution and then is off-the-hook. He encouraged M.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- March 6, 2014



Thayer to look in the pending bill's direction for all public
enpl oyees.

CHAI R DYSON noted a question from a constituent who asked if M.
Thayer is aware that enployees of the Alaska Departnent of
Nat ural Resources' Fire and Aviation Program are classified as
clerical workers rather than first responders.

MR. THAYER replied that he is aware of the issue and DOA-
Retirement and Benefits is addressing whether personnel are on
the front lines or back at headquarters where the fire is 200
m | es away.

CHAI R DYSON noted that his constituent is a fire chief and said
the people he is referring to are anong the very best trained
brush fire people in the state.

9: 37: 54 AM
CHAI R DYSON asked if there was objection to nmoving M. Thayer's
appoi ntnment forward. [No objection noted.] He read the foll ow ng
st at enent :

In accordance with Article 3, Section 25 of the Al aska
Constitution, AS  39. 05. 080, t he State Affairs
Commttee reviewed the followwng and recomended
appointnment be forwarded to the Joint Session for
consi derati on: Comm ssioner of the Departnent of
Adm nistration, Curtis Thayer. This does not reflect
the intent of any of the nenbers to vote for or
against the confirmation of the individual during
further sessions.

9:38:31 AM

CHAI R DYSON decl ared that the commttee will stand at ease.

9: 39: 38 AM

CHAI R DYSON set forth that the conmttee take up the appoi ntnent
of | mmanuel Lewis as Conm ssioner f or the Alaska State

Comm ssion for Human Ri ghts.

9:39: 57 AM

| MVANUEL LEW S, Conmi ssioner-Designee, Alaska State Conm ssion
for Human Rights (ASCHR), Ofice of the Governor, Anchorage,
Al aska, stated that he has been a resident of Alaska for three
years and has been involved in different businesses as well as
non-profits by hel ping youths and adults that are at-risk.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- March 6, 2014



He noted that his résumé shows that he has noved around the
country a lot and explained that being an African Anerican in
Ceorgia, he has seen discrimnation and how it can affect a
person's life. He explained that he has learned a lot from the
di fferent organizations and businesses that he has worked for.
He set forth that he will bring to ASCHR a wel| bal anced vi ew.

9:41: 21 AM
SENATOR W ELECHONSKI asked to clarify that M. Lews has |ived
in Alaska for three years.

MR. LEW S responded yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if M. Lewis feels |ike he has enough
knowl edge about the state to be able to effectively sit on
ASCHR.

MR LEWS replied that he does. He noted his first position was
a Governnment Account Manager with AT&T and the position allowed
him to travel around the state and work with state and | ocal
government as well as nonprofit organizations, school districts,
and regional hospitals. He said he has traveled nobst of the
state both in Southeast Al aska, Wstern Alaska, and up to
Fairbanks and Barrow. He remarked that he has |earned about
different communities in each area and the needs of those
comunities as well as the people that live in those
communities. He asserted that his know edge of the state goes
beyond sone of the people who have lived in Alaska a little
| onger.

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI noted that ASCHR addresses: race, color,
religion, sex, national origin, physical disabilities, and
mental disabilities. He pointed out that there is a bill noving
t hr ough t he Legi sl ature to i ncl ude sexual orientation
di scrim nati on.

MR LEWS replied that he believes that the addition of sexual
orientation is needed. He asserted that addressing sexual
orientation is the way the rest of the country is noving and it
is fair to put that into place.

9:43: 17 AM

CHAI R DYSON declared that the conmttee will nove on to address
the appointnment of Mchele Christiansen as Conm ssioner for the
Al aska State Human Ri ghts Conm ssion (ASHRC).

9:43:52 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- March 6, 2014



M CHELE CHRI STI ANSEN, Comm ssi oner - Desi gnee, Al aska State Hunman
Ri ghts Comm ssion, Ofice of the Governor, Anchorage, Al aska,
expl ai ned that she was born and raised in Alaska, although she
is not an Alaska native, she is native to Al aska. She expl ai ned
that her background is in corporate conpliance and ethics
prograns as well as being the Ofice Mnager for the Al aska
Justice Center as an advocate for Alaska Natives due to the
inequities in the crimnal and justice system She sunmmarized
that her history shows her strong belief in equality.

9:47:40 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL noted M. Christiansen's résumé and her
conprehensive view of Al askans. She addressed her applications
for the Al aska Bar Association, Al cohol Beverage Control Board,
Regul at ory Conmi ssion of Alaska, and the W rkers' Conpensation
Board. She noted that the four agencies that M. Christiansen
applied for are very different than the Comm ssion on Human
Ri ghts. She asked Ms. Christiansen to address the difference.

M5. CHRI STI ANSEN replied that her application pertained to her
changing jobs and Ilearning nore about the Human Rights
Conmi ssi on.

CHAI R DYSON reveal ed that he served on ASHRC for three years.

M5. CHRI STI ANSEN noted that she has dealt with a |lot of issues,
especially through the Alaska Native Justice Center. She
asserted that inequities exist and serving on ASHRC is an
i mportant m ssion.

9:49: 48 AM

CHAI R DYSON asked the conmittee if there is an objection to
moving Ms. Christiansen's nomination forward, [no objection was
not ed. ]

9:50: 36 AM

NOCRA BARLOW Board Menber-Designee, Violent Crimes Conpensation
Board (VCCB), Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration, Anchorage,
Al aska, explained that she is a current VCCB board nenber. She
said she was originally appointed to serve for a retired menber
in addition to a one term reappointnment. She set forth that she
enjoys her work, considers serving to be inportant, and asked
t hat she be reconfirned.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI thanked Ms. Barlow for the great work that
she is doing on VCCB.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- March 6, 2014



CHAI R DYSON addressed legislation that will significantly equip
VCCB to do a | ot nore.

M5. BARLOW t hanked Chair Dyson and noted being aware of pending
| egislation to assist VCCB.

9:52:42 AM

RI CHARD BURTQON, Appointee, Alaska Police Standards Counci
(APSC), Departnent of Public Safety, Ketchikan, Al aska, reveal ed
that he cane to Alaska in 1952 and was one of the first Al aska
State Troopers hired during statehood. He pointed out that he
has worked in all regions of the state. He said he started his
| aw enforcenent career w thout professional training and noted a
need to hire professional police officers and public safety
officers. He revealed that he has been on APSC for a numnber of
years, serving as the conm ssioner twice. He stated that one of
the reasons why he would |ike another a termis to finish APSC s
current review of regulations and statutes. He shared his |aw
enf orcenment background since retirement and noted his occasional
role in assisting with breakdowns in police departnents. He
asserted that he is famliar with the effect that good conduct
and good people have on | aw enforcenent. He shared that recently
there has been sone bizarre behavior done by people who should
not have been hired in the first place.

9: 56: 38 AM
CHAI R DYSON asked to clarify that APSC is not bound to just deal
w th cases brought before the council, but APSC can investigate

anonynous whi stl e-bl ower incidences.

MR. BURTON answered yes. He shared that APSC has addressed cases
in the manner Chair Dyson described, but noted that APSC is not
an appeal s court for |aw enforcenent officers.

CHAI R DYSON shared his background as a supervisor where he was
told that he could not provide references for fornmer enployees
beyond their dates of enploynent. He revealed knowing a |aw
enforcenment i ndividual who had worked at various ©police
departnments and bargained for release from enploynent w thout
reference being made to his work record. He asked if a police
departnment can ask for a release from a |aw enforcenent
candidate to receive information froma previous enpl oyer.

MR. BURTON responded that if a <candidate lies on their
application, the incident is considered perjury because the
application is done under oath. He added that APSC has the power
of subpoena in order to investigate cases. He said an incident

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 6, 2014



does not require APSC to wait for a police chief to submt
i nformation; APSC views a case as whether it neets the standards
to decertify or not decertify.

CHAI R DYSON said he is pleased that M. Burton is accepting his
appoi nt nent because he has the courage and integrity to weed-out
the bad guys. He shared that he used to be able to say wth
great pride that in Alaska there were no "dirty" cops or
corrections officers, no unnecessary violence, and no unethi cal
behavior, in particular sexual exploitation. He stated that
people |ike M. Burton serving on APSC w Il be a real asset.

10: 00: 44 AM
CHAIR DYSON asked if there was any objection to noving M.
Burton and all of the [previous] recomendations forward. He

stated that seeing no objection, he read the followng
statenent :

In accordance with Article 3, Section 25 of the Al aska
Consti tution, AS  39. 05. 080, t he State Affairs
Commttee reviewed the followwng and recomended
appointnments to be forwarded to the Joint Session for
consi derati on: State Commi ssion of Human Rights,
M chele Christiansen; Alaska State Commission for
Human Rights, |Immanuel Lew s; Alaska Police Standards
Council, Richard Burton; Violent Crimes Conpensation
Board, Nora Barlow. This does not reflect the intent
of any of the nmenbers to vote for or against the
confirmation  of the individuals during further
sessi ons.

10: 01: 32 AM
CHAI R DYSON decl ared that the commttee will stand at ease

SJR 18- FEDERAL CONSTI TUTI ONAL CONVENTI ON

10: 02: 31 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the conmttee will take up SJR 18.

10: 04: 29 AM

TYLER BELK, Staff, Senator Dyson, Alaska State Legislature,
Juneau, Alaska, inferred that the commttee was addressing a
resolution that |ooks at one of the great docunments in hunman
history, the United States Constitution. He said the Convention
of States (COS) is a neans to exam ne and anend the Constitution
wi thout putting the docunment's entirety and integrity at risk.
He asserted that COS is a great opportunity to operate wthout

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- March 6, 2014



ram fication and the possibilities are endless. He pointed out
that COS is non-partisan and topic-based. He said the "will of
the time" wll determne what is covered in the COS. He set
forth that a COS will be a nonunental occasion in United States
history that |ooks at sonmething that essentially binds the
country.

10: 06: 01 AM

CHAIR DYSON stated that it is often very difficult for change to
come from any bureaucracy and the process often takes sone
outside action to overcone the institutional inertia. He said it
appears to him that the Founding Fathers recognized the
bureaucratic process and wanted to have a way for the citizens
to initiate and affect the possibility to change the
Constitution. He pointed out that SJR 18 is a first step to get
Al aska in the queue of states that are considering calling for a
COs and there wll be several steps pertaining to rules,
del egation selection, delegation discipline, topic limtations,
topic agreenent, and COS ratification by tw thirds of the
states prior to going on a ballot. He set forth that the COS is
a very conplicated process. He pointed out that the individuals
wor ki ng on the COS have been very careful about the process and
noted that nost objections have been dealt with in a credible
way .

10: 07: 54 AM
ROBERT KELLY, Staff Council, Convention of States Project,
Ctizens for Self-Governance, Purcellville, Virginia.

CHAI R DYSON asked if there were three or four groups across the
nation that are working sonmewhat in parallel on COS. He asked if
M. Kelly to specify what his organi zati on does.

10: 08: 31 AM

MR. KELLY replied that he represents Citizens for Self-
Governance and the organization sponsors the Convention of
States Project (COSP). He said COSP is arguing for an Article V
Convention that specifies a particular set of topics for the COS
to cover.

He said there are three different approaches from a |egislative
st andpoi nt on how an Article V Convention can be run:

1. COS could be run as an unlimted convention, effectively
allowng the COS to consider any sort of issue determ ned
to be in the best interest of the American people. He
poi nted out that an unlimted COS is not the best approach

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- March 6, 2014



because the COS needs guidance and linmtations to ensure
the process stays within proper Constitutional boundari es.

2. Set out a specific topic or set of topics, allow ng the COS
some discretion to consider exactly how to propose
solutions and word anendments; however, it also keeps it
closely within certain boundaries and that's the approach
COSP i s taking.

3. Hold the COS to propose specific amendnents and |ayout in
advance the anendnents that the COS can propose; that
really limts the discretion of the COCS.

He reiterated that COSP's approach in SIJR 18 is in the mddle
realm by setting out a set of topics that the COS has to adhere
to, but allows the COS sone discretion to propose a nunber of
anmendnents within those topics. He explained that the topics in
in SJR 18 are:

1. Place fiscal restraints on the federal governnent.

2. Limt the power and jurisdiction of the federal governnent.

3. Inmpose term limts on federal officials and nenbers of
congr ess.

MR. KELLY said COSP believes the use of set-topics is the best
approach because COS wll have the ability to address the
problem of federal overreach as a whole and allow for a
"holistic" solution to nassive inbalance of power in the federal
government; a COS limted to a single isolated anmendnent cannot
do that. He explained that COSP likes the idea of a balanced
budget anendnent, but passing one in the <current federal
political climate is likely to result in a massive tax hike. He
set forth that COSP believes a better approach is to allow the
COS to consider the problem as a whole, to consider it as a
topic, and to allow the COS to fornmul ate exactly what anendnents
will address a problem for exanple, federal overreach. He noted
that the topic-based approach was the approach the Founding
Fathers used for the vast mpjority of the 32 conventions that
they held in the years leading up to the adoption of the
Constitution.

10: 11: 33 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noting seeing sone comentary from |aw
professors that there is sone question as to whether or not a
COS could be limted to specific itenms in the resolution; in
ot her words, once you got there, anything would be opened. He
asked if there was legal precedent that would address the
concerns the anything would be opened.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 6, 2014



MR. KELLY replied that the Supreme Court has never had an
opportunity to address the |[egal question that Senat or
W el echowski presented for an Article V Convention. He pointed
out that there is an extensive set of historical practice, both
by the Founding Fathers and by Anericans since the founding. The

Founding Fathers thenselves held at |east 32 conventions
thenselves in the 100 years leading up to the adoption of the
Consti tution. He noted having records of at least four

conventions since the founding. He said in the vast majority of
the conventions, the Founding Fathers and the individuals who
hel d conventions after the founding, a specific topic for the
COS had been set out to consider and that was the backdrop
agai nst which the Founding Fathers were adding the provision to
the Constitution and the Founding Fathers limted their COS to
specific topics and stayed within boundaries. He asserted that
from a historical record that it is clear that an Article V
Convention could also be limted within specific topics.

CHAI R DYSON announced that SJR 18 will be held in commttee and
asked that M. Kelly call back to testify at the next neeting.

MR. KELLY confirmed that he wll be available for the next
hearing for SJR 18.

10: 14: 10 AM

ZABRI NA BYFUGLI EN, Student, Tri-Valley H gh School, Healy,
Al aska, stated that she supports SIJR 18 and the COS in order to
address federal overreach.

10: 16: 46 AM

MADI SON OWEN, Student, Tri-Valley H gh School, Healy, Al aska,
stated that she supports SJR 18 and noted that the COS is not a
partisan issue and ultimately returns the Constitution to the
Foundi ng Father's original intentions.

10: 19: 23 AM

| SABELLA SAXE, Student, Tri-Valley H gh School, Healy, Al aska,
said she supports SJR 18 due to the federal governnent
overstepping its bounds. She addressed fears for a "runaway" COS
and noted that checks are in place to prevent a runaway
scenari o.

10: 22: 25 AM

Nl COLE MCVASTER, Student, Tri-Valley H gh School, Healy, Al aska,
said she supports SIJR 18 due to the federal governnent's
overreach and continued debt spending.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- March 6, 2014



10: 24: 50 AM
CHAI R DYSON commended the students for their testinony. He noted
that his staff nenber that presented SIJR 18 is an intern and
encouraged the Healy students to pursue their interests in
gover nnent .

SENATOR G ESSEL thanked the students for their testinony and
noted her appreciation for their know edge of American history
and critical thinking skills. She remarked that the students'
testinmony provide her with hope for the next generation.

10: 26: 31 AM

DAVID EICHLER, State Director, Convention of States Project,
North Pole, Alaska, said he supports SJR 18 and its intent to
enact limtations on the federal governmnent.

CHAI R DYSON remarked that the process for a COS is going to be a
long fight. He surmised that the process to have a COS will take
three years or |onger. He encouraged volunteers |ike M. Eichler
to continue their commtnment for a COS and not to quit.

SENATOR COGHILL noted the case brought forward by the Healy
students was articulate and enphasized the need for SIJR 18 to
keep pressure on the federal governnent to have a discussion on
having a COS to deal with the national debt. He remarked that
the students pointed out that they already owed for a debt that
had been | eft to them and future generations.

10: 29: 07 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the committee will reconvene [SJR 18
was held until the next conmttee neeting.]

10: 29: 17 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Dyson adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Conmttee at 10:29 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 6, 2014



